
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
 


 (*In order discussed) 
 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
March 2, 2017 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Tim Lipinski 
 Rich Holmer 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Pip Marquez de la Plata 
   
Board Members Absent: (None) 
 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Robin Donoghue, Legal Counsel 
      Michael Celentano, Auditor 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Robb-Wilder at 6:30 p.m.   
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:32 
p.m.) 


 
The GM passed out correspondence from CSDA regarding a Board opening. 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.) 
 
Director Robb-Wilder reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Holmer moved to 
approve the Consent Calendar. Director Marquez de la Plata seconded.  Motion carried 5-0.  The 
following items were approved:  
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the February 2, 2017 Regular Meeting.  
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment. 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence: (None.) 
 


 1







 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:33 p.m.) 
None. 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:33 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 
 
V-A. (6:33 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Draft Comment Letter and District Press Release 


Regarding Fish Flow Project DEIR and the Sonoma County Water Agency's 
Petition to Change Decision 1610.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board 
questions and discussion ensued.  Public comment was made by Brenda Adelman.  
Extensive discussion ensued, with additional comments made by Brenda Adelman and 
the GM.  No formal action was taken, but this item was scheduled for further discussion 
at the March Board meeting.   


 
V-B. (7:32 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Audit for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016.  


The GM provided an overview of this item.  District Independent Auditor Michael 
Celentano provided an overview of the Audit.  Board questions and discussion ensued.  
No action was tkaen.  


 
V-C. (7:41 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re 2016-17 2nd Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted 


Operations and Capital Expenditures and County Balances.  The GM provided an 
overview of this item.  Brief discussion ensued.  No action was taken.   


 
V-D. (7:45 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Mid-Year Budget Adjustment and Resolution 17-


01, Adopting the Revised FY 2016-17 Operating and Capital Budget.  The GM 
provided an overview of this item.  Board questions and discussion ensued.  Director 
Lipinski moved to approve Resolution 17-01, Adopting the Revised FY 2016-17 
Operating and Capital Budget.  Director Schaap seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.   


 
V-E. (8:03 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Appointment of a FY 2017-18 Budget Committee 


and Progress on the FY 2017-18 Budget.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  
Director Robb-Wilder formally appointed Director Schaap and Director Lipinski to serve 
on an Ad Hoc Budget Committee, to last until the Budget is approved.   


 
V-F. (8:07 p.m.)  Discussion/Action on Review of the January Flood.  The GM provided 


an overview of this item.  Board discussion and questions ensued.  No action was taken. 
 


 
VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:20 p.m.) 


 
The General Manager reported on the following items: 
1. Water Production and Sales 
2. Leaks 
3. Guerneville rainfall 
4. River Lane Property Sale 
5. El Bonita Flooding Plan 
6. 2017 CIP 
7. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program 
8. In-House Construction Projects 
9. Gantt Chart 
10. Waller litigation 
 
Discussion ensued. 
 
 


 2







 3


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(8:26 p.m.) 


 
1. Director Robb-Wilder announced that three school districts (Guerneville, Monte Rio, and 


Forestville) detached from Palm Drive District and that our assessment will no longer go 
towards new obligations or operations.  


 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (None) 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:32 p.m.) 
 
1. FY 2015-16 Audit discussion 
2. Fish Flow project 
3. Draft Budget 
 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:34 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 
APPROVED:  
 


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        


Pip Marquez de la Plata       





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:32 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:33 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:33 p.m.)*

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:20 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS

		(8:26 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (None)



		ADJOURN






 1


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES 
 


Board of Directors SPECIAL Meeting  
March 6, 2017 
5 p.m. 
 
Board Members Present: Tim Lipinski Gaylord Schaap  
 Sukey Robb-Wilder Rich Holmer 
 Pip Marquez de la Plata (arr. 5:05 pm) 
   
Board Members Absent: (None) 
 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie Kenny, Secretary to the Board (left 5:30 pm) 
  
Others in Attendance:     (None) 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Robb-Wilder at 5:03 p.m.   
 
 


II. PUBLIC COMMENT (5:03 p.m.)(None.) 
 
 


III. ADMINISTRATIVE (5:05 p.m.)* 
 
V-A. (6:33 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Sonoma County Water Agency's Fish Flow Project DEIR 


and Petition to Change Decision 1610 and steps to take/direction to staff going forward.  
The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  Direction was given staff 
to continue working on a press release.   


 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:22 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


APPROVED:  
 


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        


Pip Marquez de la Plata       





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. PUBLIC COMMENT (5:03 p.m.)(None.)

		III. ADMINISTRATIVE (5:05 p.m.)*

		ADJOURN






 
 
 
 


www.sweetwatersprings.com 


 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA 


April 6, 2017, Regular Meeting  
District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 


Guerneville, California 
6:30 p.m. 


 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the March 2, 2017 Board Meeting and March 6, 2017 


Special Board Meeting 
 







B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re Approval of Res 17-05, Designation of Applicant's Agent 


Resolution for Non-State Agencies (Est. time 10 min.) 
  
B.   Discussion/Action re Fish Flow Project DEIR and the Sonoma County Water 


Agency's Petition to Change Decision 1610. (Est. time 30 min.)   
 
C. Discussion/Action re Draft FY 2017-18 Budget (Est. time 20 min.)  
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION 
 
 A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-EXISTING LITIGATION 


 Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) 


 Claimant: Deborah Waller  


 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 


 
 


ADJOURN 


 2







 3


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : April 6, 2017  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 17-05, 
DESIGNATION OF APPLICANT'S AGENT RESOLUTION FOR NON-STATE 
AGENCIES 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Resolution 17-05 which is entitled Designatin of 


Applicant's Agent Resolution for Non-State Agencies and which will allow the 
District to receive disaster relief funding for costs associated with the January 8-
13 Russian River flooding.    


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Will allow reimbursement for January flooding costs which at this 


time we estimate at up to approximately $21,000.   
 


DISCUSSION: 
 
The January 8-13, 2017 Russian River flooding has been declared a disaster.  This 
allows the District to request reimbursement for costs directly related to that flooding.  
These costs could include the costs of waterproofing the vaults at the El Bonita Well 
Field which we estimate at approximately $18,000 and staff costs for extra work during 
the flooding which be believe to be approximately $3600.   
 
This resolution will not cover the costs of February flooding and February landslides 
which were due to all the rain we had.  The Old Monte Rio Road slide temporary and 
yet-to-come permanent fix are the major costs associated with February rains.  We 
expect some process, either Federal or State, to provide for disaster relief funding for 
that.   







STATE OF CALIFORNIA                                                                                                      Disaster No: ______________________ 


CALIFORNIA EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY                                Cal EMA ID No: ______________________ 
Cal EMA 130 
 
 


DESIGNATION OF APPLICANT'S AGENT RESOLUTION 
FOR NON-STATE AGENCIES 


 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE    OF THE    


        (Governing Body)                                                                 (Name of Applicant) 
 


THAT    , OR 
(Title of Authorized Agent) 


 
  , OR 


(Title of Authorized Agent) 
 
 


(Title of Authorized Agent) 
 


is hereby authorized to execute for and on behalf of the   , a public entity 
                                                                                                                             (Name of Applicant) 
established under the laws of the State of California, this application and to file it with the California Emergency Management Agency for 
the purpose of obtaining certain federal financial assistance under Public Law 93-288 as amended by the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief 
and Emergency Assistance Act of 1988, and/or state financial assistance under the California Disaster Assistance Act. 
 
THAT the ________________________________________________, a public entity established under the laws of the State of California, 
                                              (Name of Applicant) 
hereby authorizes its agent(s) to provide to the California Emergency Management Agency for all matters pertaining to such state disaster 
assistance the assurances and agreements required. 
 


Please check the appropriate box below: 
 


This is a universal resolution and is effective for all open and futures disasters up to three (3) years following the date of approval below. 


This is a disaster specific resolution and is effective for only disaster number(s) ________________________ 
 


 
 


Passed and approved this    day of   , 20   
 
 
 


(Name and Title of Governing Body Representative) 
 
 


(Name and Title of Governing Body Representative) 
 
 


(Name and Title of Governing Body Representative) 
 


CERTIFICATION 
 


I,    , duly appointed and    of 
          (Name) (Title) 


 


  , do hereby certify that the above is a true and correct copy of a 
(Name of Applicant) 


 
Resolution passed and approved by the   of the    


        (Governing Body) (Name of Applicant) 
 


on the   day of   , 20  . 
 


 
 


 
                 (Signature)                   (Title) 


 
Cal EMA 130 (Rev.4/11)                                                                                 Page 1 



smack

Typewritten Text



smack

Typewritten Text

Clerk of the Board of Directors







STATE OF CALIFORNIA                                                                                                    
CALIFORNIA EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY   
Cal EMA 130 - Instructions 


 
Cal EMA Form 130 


Instructions 
 
A new Designation of Applicant’s Agent Resolution for Non-State Agencies is required if the previously submitted 
document is older than three (3) years from the last date of approval. 
 


When completing the Cal EMA Form 130, Applicants should fill in the blanks on page 1.  The blanks are to be filled in as 
follows: 


 
Resolution Section: 


 
Governing Body:  This is the individual or group responsible for appointing and approving the Authorized 
Agents.  Examples include:  Board of Directors, City Council, Board of Supervisors, etc. 


 
Name of Applicant:  This is the official name of the non-profit, agency, city, or county that has applied for the grant. 
Examples include:  Sacramento Public Water Works; City of Sacramento; or Sacramento County. 


 
Authorized Agent:  These are the individuals that are authorized by the Governing Body to engage with the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency and the California Emergency Management Agency regarding grants applied for by the 
Applicant. There are two ways of completing this section: 


 
1.    Titles Only:  If the Governing Body so chooses, the titles of the Authorized Agents should be entered here, not 


their names. This allows the document to remain valid if an Authorized Agent leaves the position and is 
replaced by another individual.  If “Titles Only” is the chosen method, this document must be accompanied by 
a cover letter naming the Authorized Agents by name and title. This cover letter can be completed by any 
authorized person within the agency (e.g.; City Clerk, the Authorized Agent, Secretary to the Director) and 
does not require the Governing Body’s signature. 


 
2.    Names and Titles:  If the Governing Body so chooses, the names and titles of the Authorized Agents should be 


listed. A new Cal EMA Form 130 will be required if any of the Authorized Agents are replaced, leave the position 
listed on the document or their title changes. 


 
Governing Body Representative:  These are the names and titles of the approving board members. Examples 
include:  Chairman of the Board, Director, Superintendent, etc.  The names and titles cannot  be one of  the designated 
Authorized Agents. 


 
Certification Section: 


 
Name and Title: This is the individual that was in attendance and recorded the Resolution creation and approval. 
Examples include:  City Clerk, Secretary to the Board of Directors, County Clerk, etc. This person cannot 
be one of the designated Authorized Agents to eliminate “Self Certification.” 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cal EMA 130 (Rev.4/11)                                                                                Page 2 
 





		Item V-A - Disaster Relief Res 17-05 Approval

		Meeting Date : April 6, 2017 



		Item V-A.1 Resolution 17-05 Cal EMA130



		Disaster No: DR-4301

		Cal EMA ID No: 

		Governing Body: Board of Directors

		Name of Applicant: Sweetwater Springs Water District

		Title of Authorized Agent: General Manager Stephen Mack

		Title of Authorized Agent_2: Field Manager Kevin Gilman

		Title of Authorized Agent_3: Admin Manager Julie Kenny

		Name of Applicant_2: Sweetwater Springs Water District

		Name of Applicant_3: Sweetwater Springs Water District

		This is a universal resolution and is effective for all open and futures disasters up to three 3 years following the date of approval below: Off

		This is a disaster specific resolution and is effective for only disaster numbers: On

		undefined: DR-4301

		day of: April

		20: 6

		undefined_2: 17

		Name and Title of Governing Body Representative: Sukey Robb-Wilder, President

		Name and Title of Governing Body Representative_2: Pip Marquez de la Plata, Vice President

		Name and Title of Governing Body Representative_3: Tim Lipinsky, Financial Coordinator

		Name: Julie Kenny

		Title: Clerk of the Board of Directors

		Name of Applicant_4: Sweetwater Springs  Water District

		Governing Body_2: Board of Directors

		Name of Applicant_5: Sweetwater Springs Water District

		day of_2: 6

		20_2: April

		Year: 17








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : April 6, 2017  
 
SUBJECT:  PROGRESS ON REVIEW OF AND COMMENTS ON THE SONOMA 
COUNTY WATER AGENCY FISH FLOW PROJECT 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation from General Manager Steve Mack 


regarding review and comment on a proposed comment letter on the Sonoma 
County Water Agency draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) on its proposal 
to change Water Rights Decision 1610 with changes proposed by the Fish Flow 
Project and a press release on that comment letter for the DEIR, and provide 
direction to staff.    


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none   


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
In mid August 2016, the Sonoma County Water Agency (SCWA) released the long-
awaited draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) on the Fish Habitat Flows and Water 
Rights Project, also called the Fish Flow Project. This DEIR is the environmental 
document for their proposed changes to Water Rights Decision 1610 which governs how 
releases from the dams that regulate the Russian River are made and sets a range of 
required minimum flows at various points in the River.  It appears that SCWA wants to 
achieve two major actions from the proposed changes to Decision 1610: 
 


 Make permanent the flow changes ordered by the Biological Opinion for 
endangered salmonid species in the Russian River (BO), and 


 
 Change the Decision 1610 hydrologic index so that 1) it is based on Lake 


Mendocino instead of Lake Pillsbury, has more ( from 3 currently to 5) conditions 
on which to base releases, 3) takes account of the reduced inflows from the Eel 
River, and 4) has more flexibility seasonally, going from seasonal decisions to 
monthly decisions.   


 
At the March meeting the Board approved a comment letter on the DEIR and that was 
sent on March.   On March 6 we had a special meeting to discuss a conference phone 
call with Grant Davis and Pamela Jeane which affirmed SCWA's opinion of our water 
rights and which also included their suggested solution of a contract for emergency 
water supplies during dry periods.  At that March 6 meeting the Board also approved a 
strategy of talking to the media about the concerns expressed in the comment letter 
and talking with County supervisors about these concerns.   







Fish Flow Project DEIR Progress  2 
April 6, 2017 


 


 
Progress made: 
 


 Press release shared with Mary Callahan of the Press Democrat. She received the 
information but has not had time to do anything with it (she's also working on the 
homeless story).    


 
 Letter sent to Supervisor Gore requesting a meeting to discuss this matter and 


giving background (attached). 
 


 The State Board and North Coast Regional Board provided comments on the 
DEIR.  It's a big document; this is the link:  http://www.rrwpc.org/rrwpc/wp-
content/uploads/2017/03/2017.03.10-FINAL_SCWA_DEIR_Comment-Letter.pdf.  
The cover letter to the comments states that the State Board change of petition 
process will take years because of the volume of protests, and it is the 
responsibility of SCWA to make a good faith effort to resolve any protests.   













		Item V-B - Fish Flow Project Review Progress

		Meeting Date : April 6, 2017 



		Item V-B.1 SSWD Gore ltr






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: April 6, 2017  
 
SUBJECT:  DRAFT FY 2017-2018 BUDGET AND DISTRICT CALPERS 
UNFUNDED ACCRUED LIABILITY 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a report on the Draft District FY 2017-2018 (FY 
18) Budget, including the District’s proposed water rates based on a 3% increase, 
and the District's CalPERS Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL).  Provide direction to 
staff and the ad hoc Budget Subcommittee on how to address increasing unfunded 
retirement liability expenses, including direction on whether and to what extent to 
proceed with exercising an option for USDA loan funding 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Provides financial direction for FY 2017-2018 and beyond 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The draft FY18 Budget was presented at the March meeting.  At that meeting we 
gave the normal draft budget presentation with examples of the proposed water 
rates, draft line item budget detail and general description of the highlights of the 
Budget.  I mentioned our concern about the CalPERS unfunded accrued liability cost 
increases and where they might go in the future.  Since then staff have discussed 
this in more detail and we believe we need a better discussion of this prior to moving 
forward with the Budget.  On March 29, the Budget Subcommittee discussed this 
issue and recommended having a full discussion with the Board.   
 
CalPERS's UAL (and defined benefit retirement programs UAL in general) have been 
getting a fair amount of attention lately.  Valuation changes brought about by PEPRA, 
poor investment returns in FY 2013-14 and FY 2014-15, and most recently a change 
in PERS's assumption of future investment returns have each added large amounts 
to the District's UAL.   
 
How large is our UAL? 
 
The District's UAL through 06/30/2017 including accrued interest is $722,863.  
However, this figure only includes investment returns and assumption changes 
through 6/30/2015, plus interest thru 6/30/2017.  Because we know investment 
returns were poor in FY 2015-16 (0.6%) and because we know PERS has changed 
their assumed rate of return from 7.5% to 7.0%, staff expects our UAL to 
increase by about $200,000 next year, plus an unknown amount in the 
succeeding years as the change to the assumed rate of return is put in place.  
Therefore, staff believes it is reasonable to assume our UAL is really about $1 







FY18 Budget and District Unfunded Accrued Liability  2 
April 6, 2017 
 


 


million, carrying a 7.5% interest rate.  We will know more about this at the next 
valuation but we won't get that report until August 2017. 
 
The District's long-range planning has reflected a desire to self-fund our capital 
projects, keep rate increases to a level consistent with recent history, while still 
having the flexibility to meet unexpected costs.  Staff has long been aware that 
CalPERS charges a high interest rate for unfunded liabilities.  Twice in the past 
the District has prepaid unfunded liabilities to avoid paying this interest.  It may 
be time to consider a third prepayment effort, but this time the size of the 
District's UAL means a prepayment would impact the District's long range 
financial plan.   
 
What can we do?  We have some options: 
 
1. Do nothing.  Our payments for the current UL would follow the PERS 
amortization schedule, attached, which is a ramp-up/ramp down plan: early years 
have lower payments that do not even cover interest and payments increase each 
year.   Based on liabilities yet to be factored into this schedule as discussed 
above, expect payments to soon exceed scheduled amounts by about 20%.  In a 
few years, UAL payments will likely approach the $100,000 range -- a much 
larger expense than we have been using in past budget forecasting.  
 
2. Pre-pay the UAL over the next few years using existing cash reserves above 
District policy.  Because District cash reserves have been decreasing in recent 
years this option would likely require paring down planned capital improvements,  
decreasing other expenses, increasing rates to increase income, or some 
combination of the three.  It would also leave little room for unplanned expenses. 
 
3. Pre-pay the UAL in FY 2017-18 using cash reserves AND exercise the option 
to use USDA loan funds for all or part of CIP 2017.  This option would bring in the 
cash needed to make a significant payment on the UL while still proceeding with 
planned capital improvements and allowing some room for unplanned expenses.  
Moreover, the USDA loan carries an interest rate of 2.25% compared to the 7.5% 
interest rate on the UL.  However, it would add to District debt payments for 40 
years.   
 
There are other issues to consider: 
 
Can we prepay UAL?  We need to get CalPERS confirmation that we can make 
payments on a different schedule other than what we have been presented.  We 
have a number of questions about our assumptions on this that require CalPERS staff 
confirmation.   
 
Using USDA funding has issues - USDA requires preapproval of any bid documents, 
one contract for the entire project, and we have Phase 1 of the 2017 CIP out for bid.  







FY18 Budget and District Unfunded Accrued Liability  3 
April 6, 2017 
 


 


We can either reject these bids, rebid the entire project which would require delay 
and probable start of construction a year from now, or self fund Phase 1 and use the 
USDA funding for Phases 2 and 3 - Phases 2 and 3 would start next year with this 
approach.  We would get less benefit from the USDA funding but would still get the 
added flexibility and better annual District Reserves.  Tables 2 and 3 show how the 
UAL affects long-term planning with and without the USDA funding. 
 
Moving Forward: 
 
You will have many questions with this presentation; we may have some of the 
answers but likely not all - staff still needs to get questions answered by CalPERS, as 
well.   
 
Bid opening for Phase 1 of the 2017 CIP is on April 13; award of contract was to be 
at the May meeting.  Do we go forward with Phase 1?  This is a decision that can be 
made at the May meeting.   
 
We propose bringing the draft budget back to the Board at the May meeting with 
answers for questions and a revised draft budget.  We propose having the public 
hearing for the Budget at the June Board meeting.   


 
 


 
 


Table 1.  FY 2017-2018 Budget Preparation  (Revised) 
Approved Capital Improvement Program  December 1, 2016 


Introduce Budget Process January 5, 2017 


Budget Committee meetings February/March 
2017 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action, 
Including Direction on Water Rates 


March 2, 2017 


Prop 218 Mailing for Water Rate Increase March 20, 2017 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action April 6, 2017 


Approve Budget 
 Prop 218 Public Hearing on Rates


May 4, 2017 







FY18 Budget and District Unfunded Accrued Liability  4 
April 6, 2017 
 


 


 


3% Sales Flat


FY16 Actual FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24


1 REVENUE
2 OPERATING REVENUE Reduced WS Flat Flat….
3 Water Bill Revenue


4 Capital Debt Reduction Charge 261,565 270,500 278,615 286,973 295,583 304,450 313,584 322,991 404,300          


5 Total Water Sales 2,245,959 2,042,600 2,103,878 2,206,092 2,272,275 2,340,444 2,410,657 2,482,977 2,557,466


6 Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,245,959 2,313,100 2,382,493 2,493,066 2,567,858 2,644,894 2,724,240 2,805,968 2,961,766


7 Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 126,559 118,915 119,600 112,702 114,655 116,647 118,679 120,751 122,865


8 Total Income 2,372,518 2,432,015 2,502,093 2,605,768 2,682,513 2,761,541 2,842,919 2,926,719 3,084,631


9 EXPENSES New GM


10 882,336 889,200 905,120 923,222 971,687 991,121 1,010,943 1,031,162 1,051,785


11 281,186 314,769 342,180 352,445 363,019 373,909 385,127 396,680 408,581


12 SALARY & BENEFITS 1,163,522 1,203,969 1,247,300 1,275,668 1,334,706 1,365,030 1,396,070 1,427,842 1,460,366


Unfunded Liability Increase 97,000 65,592 74,665 82,966 85,455 88,019 90,659
13 SERVICES & SUPPLIES increase =


14 SERVICES & SUPPLIES 440,732 513,860 515,900 521,059 526,270 531,532 536,848 542,216 547,638


15 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,604,254 1,717,829 1,860,200 1,862,319 1,935,640 1,979,528 2,018,372 2,058,077 2,098,663


16 OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $768,264 $714,186 $641,893 $743,449 $746,873 $782,012 $824,547 $868,642 $985,967


17 FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 62,633 62,000 22,000 60,000 20,000 60,000 20,000 60,000 20,000


18 Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 261,565 270,500       278,615      286,973        295,583        304,450          313,584          322,991         404,300          


19 Tfers to CIRF 320,000         330,000       390,000      450,000        420,000        490,000          500,000          560,000         570,000          


20 Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 621,565 640,500 708,615 776,973 755,583 834,450 853,584 922,991 1,014,300


21 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 84,066 11,686 -88,722 -93,524 -28,710 -112,438 -49,037 -114,349 -48,333


22 Capital Budget
23 REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS
24 Net Operating Revenues** 404,066 341,686 301,278 356,476 391,290 377,562 450,963 445,651 521,667


25 Assessments 775,481 775,481 775,481 775,481 775,481 775,481 775,481 775,481 775,481


26 Capital Debt Reduction Charge*** 261,565         270,500       278,615      286,973        295,583        304,450          313,584          322,991         404,300          


27 Capital Interest 8,367             10,000         10,000        10,000          10,000          10,000            10,000            10,000           10,000            


28 Transfers From CIRF/Reserves 772,515         570,000       390,000        105,000          130,000         


29 TOTAL REVENUE 2,221,994 1,967,667 1,365,374 1,818,931 1,472,354 1,572,494 1,550,028 1,684,123 1,711,448


30
31 Total Debt Payments 1,035,961      1,099,017    1,013,550   995,550        995,550        995,550          848,811          848,811         848,811          


32 CIP 2016 CIP 2017-1 CIP 2017-2 Replace GSF CIP 2017-3 CIP 2023 CIP 2024


33 Annual CIP 1,149,979 823,963 842,741 250,000        648,200 200,000          914,000         675,000          


34 In-House Construction Projects, etc. 36,042 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000


35 TOTAL EXPENSES 2,221,982 1,962,980 1,053,550 1,878,291 1,285,550 1,683,750 1,088,811 1,802,811 1,563,811


36 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 12 4,687 311,824 -59,360 186,804 -111,256 461,217 -118,688 147,637


37 FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)


38 Ending Funds ab District Policy (DP) 1,070,574      505,261       817,085      367,725        554,529        338,272          799,489          550,801         698,438          


Funds ab DP and Debt Payments 34,613           (593,756)      (196,465)     (627,825)       (441,021)       (657,278)         (49,322)          (298,010)        (150,373)         


39 NET CAPITAL FUNDING**** 413,518         298,650       351,824      433,381        476,804        471,944          701,217          705,312         862,637          


*  Starting values based on actual FY16 EOY


** =Transfer to CIRF plus net operating surplus


*** =Transfers from CDRC


**** =Net Operating Revenues + Assessments + CDRC + Capital Interest - Total Debt Payments


EXPENSES


Total Benefits


Water Rate, CDRC 
Increase =


Table 2.  OPERATING AND CAPITAL 
BUDGET SUMMARY - 3% Increase, Phased 
2017 CIP, No USDA Loan, Increased UAL


Total Salary


 







FY18 Budget and District Unfunded Accrued Liability  5 
April 6, 2017 
 


 


3% Sales Flat


FY16 Actual FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24


1 REVENUE
2 OPERATING REVENUE Reduced WS Flat Flat….
3 Water Bill Revenue


4 Capital Debt Reduction Charge 261,565 270,500 278,615 286,973 295,583 304,450 313,584 322,991 404,300          


5 Total Water Sales 2,245,959 2,042,600 2,103,878 2,206,092 2,272,275 2,340,444 2,410,657 2,482,977 2,557,466


6 Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,245,959 2,313,100 2,382,493 2,493,066 2,567,858 2,644,894 2,724,240 2,805,968 2,961,766


7 Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 126,559 118,915 119,600 112,702 114,655 116,647 118,679 120,751 122,865


8 Total Income 2,372,518 2,432,015 2,502,093 2,605,768 2,682,513 2,761,541 2,842,919 2,926,719 3,084,631


9 EXPENSES New GM


10 882,336 889,200 905,120 923,222 971,687 991,121 1,010,943 1,031,162 1,051,785


11 281,186 314,769 342,180 352,445 363,019 373,909 385,127 396,680 408,581


12 SALARY & BENEFITS 1,163,522 1,203,969 1,247,300 1,275,668 1,334,706 1,365,030 1,396,070 1,427,842 1,460,366


Unfunded Liability Increase 97,000 65,592 74,665 82,966 85,455 88,019 90,659


13 SERVICES & SUPPLIES increase =


14 SERVICES & SUPPLIES 440,732 513,860 515,900 521,059 526,270 531,532 536,848 542,216 547,638


15 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,604,254 1,717,829 1,860,200 1,862,319 1,935,640 1,979,528 2,018,372 2,058,077 2,098,663


16 OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $768,264 $714,186 $641,893 $743,449 $746,873 $782,012 $824,547 $868,642 $985,967


17 FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 62,633 62,000 22,000 60,000 20,000 60,000 20,000 60,000 20,000


18 Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 261,565 270,500       278,615      286,973        295,583        304,450          313,584          322,991         404,300          


19 Tfers to CIRF 320,000         330,000       390,000      450,000        420,000        490,000          500,000          560,000         570,000          


20 Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 621,565 640,500 708,615 776,973 755,583 834,450 853,584 922,991 1,014,300


21 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 84,066 11,686 -88,722 -93,524 -28,710 -112,438 -49,037 -114,349 -48,333


22 Capital Budget
23 REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS
24 Net Operating Revenues** 404,066 341,686 301,278 356,476 391,290 377,562 450,963 445,651 521,667


25 Assessments 775,481 775,481 775,481 775,481 775,481 775,481 775,481 775,481 775,481


26 Capital Debt Reduction Charge*** 261,565         270,500       278,615      286,973        295,583        304,450          313,584          322,991         404,300          


27 Capital Interest 8,367             10,000         10,000        10,000          10,000          10,000            10,000            10,000           10,000            


28 Transfers From CIRF/Reserves 772,515         570,000       390,000        105,000          130,000         


USDA Loan 1,490,941    get loan funds late FY18


29 TOTAL REVENUE 2,221,994 1,967,667 2,856,315 1,818,931 1,472,354 1,572,494 1,550,028 1,684,123 1,711,448


30
31 Total Debt Payments 1,035,961      1,099,017    1,013,550   1,055,550     1,055,550     1,055,550       968,811          968,811         968,811          


32 CIP 2016 CIP 2017-1 CIP 2017-2-3 rpl GSF CIP 2023 CIP 2024


33 Annual CIP 1,149,979 823,963 1,490,941 250,000        200,000          914,000         675,000          


34 In-House Construction Projects, etc. 36,042 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000


35 TOTAL EXPENSES 2,221,982 1,962,980 2,544,491 1,345,550 1,095,550 1,095,550 1,208,811 1,922,811 1,683,811


36 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 12 4,687 311,824 473,381 376,804 476,944 341,217 -238,688 27,637


37 FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)


38 Ending Funds ab District Policy (DP) 1,070,574      505,261       817,085      900,466        1,277,270     1,649,213       1,990,430       1,621,742      1,649,379       


Funds ab DP and Debt Payments 34,613           (593,756)      (196,465)     (155,084)       221,720        593,663          1,021,619       652,931         680,568          


39 NET CAPITAL FUNDING**** 413,518         298,650       351,824      373,381        416,804        411,944          581,217          585,312         742,637          


*  Starting values based on actual FY16 EOY


** =Transfer to CIRF plus net operating surplus


*** =Transfers from CDRC


EXPENSES


Total Benefits


Water Rate, CDRC 
Increase =


Table 3.  OPERATING AND CAPITAL 
BUDGET SUMMARY - 3% Increase, Phased 
2017 CIP, USDA Loan, UAL


Total Salary


 

























		Item V-C - FY 2017-2018 Draft Budget UAL Approach

		Meeting Date: April 6, 2017 



		Item V-C.1 - PERS Press Release re Decrease in Investment Return Assumption

		Item V-C.2 - PERS UAL Amortization Schedule






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: April 6, 2017  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in February were 12,315 units (28.3 AF, Monte 
Rio cycle) and production was 55.0 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales this month were 
lower and production was higher (30.0 AF and 48.7 AF, respectively).  The water lost 
percentage is up some (23.2); and the Monte Rio system jumped more than Guerneville - 
there were two significant leaks there in the past two months.   We had a 2% increase in 
production compared to January 2013, the State Board standard.  GPCD for February was 
69.7.  Figure 1 shows sales, production and % difference since 2010 for the two systems.     


 
2. Leaks:  In February we had 3 total leaks and spent 27 man-hours on them.   Those are the 


fewer leaks and man-hours compared to the prior month and more leaks and man-hours 
compared to February one year ago (3 and 14.25).    Figure 2 shows service and main leaks 
separately with a total breaks line as well. The District continues to be at historic lows for 
this.         


   
3. Guerneville Rainfall: We are well above average and above the highest rainfall since I 


came here (and, as I have stated earlier, I think the Guerneville numbers are approximately 
4" low for January).   Figure 3 shows monthly rainfall compared to averages and prior years.          


 
4. River Lane Property Sale:  We received a communication from the State Lands 


Commission that confirmed that much of the River Lane beach area is below their opinion of 
Ordinary High Water.  The property is being surveyed presently and the Parks District 
expects the Open Space District to move forward on processing the grant soon.   


 
5. El Bonita Flooding Plan:  No flooding in March; we did get information that perhaps some 


of the vault repairs may be eligible for disaster payments.   
 
6. 2017 CIP: The project is being advertised; bid openings will be on April 13. 
  
7. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program:  There were no toilet rebates reported for March. 
 
8. In-House Construction Projects: No in-house projects were reported for March. 
 
9.  Gantt Chart:   In April the Gantt Chart shows award of the CIP contract; we're behind on 


that schedule and we expect award of the contract at the May meeting. 
 







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 4 
April 6, 2017 
 
 


 


Figure 1.  Monte Rio and Guerneville Sales and Production 12 Month Moving 
Averages, SSWD Since March 2010 


0


100


200


300


400


500


600


700


Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11 Mar-12 Sep-12 Mar-13 Sep-13 Mar-14 Sep-14 Mar-15 Sep-15 Mar-16 Sep-16


S
al


es
 a


n
d
 P


ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 (
A


F
)


0%


5%


10%


15%


20%


25%


30%


35%


P
e
rc


en
t 
L
o
st


Monte Rio Sales


Guerneville Sales


Gville Prdtn


MR Prdtn


GV % Lost


MR % Lost


`







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 4 
April 6, 2017 
 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline 
Breaks 


Moving Annual Average Since September 2008


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-
08


Mar-
09


Sep-
09


Mar-
10


Sep-
10


Mar-
11


Sep-
11


Mar-
12


Sep-
12


Mar-
13


Sep-
13


Mar-
14


Sep-
14


Mar-
15


Sep-
15


Mar-
16


Sep-
16


B
re


ak
s


 
 
 
 Main Breaks


 
Service Breaks


 
 Total Leaks


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


Figure 3.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall


0


10


20


30


40


50


60


70


Octo
be


r


Nov
em


be
r


Dec
em


be
r


Ja
nu


ar
y


Feb
ru


ar
y


M
ar


ch
Apr


il
M


ay
Ju


ne Ju
ly


Aug
us


t


Sep
te


m
be


r


P
re


ci
p


it
at


io
n


 (
in


)


GV 2009


Guerneville Avg


GV 2011


Dryest (1977)


2016


07-15 Avg


2017


-







 
Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17 Jul-17 FY18+


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease
2014-15 Budget Preparation


        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
        Update/Review District CIP


        2017 CIP Design


        2017 CIP Award of Contract


        2017 CIP Construction Starts


Urban Water Management Plan Oct-16


Water Rights SCWA Protest
Emergency Response Plan Review
Building Lease


        Lease Renewal August-17
Policies and Procedures


        Other Policy
        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Annual Review


Figure 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: April 6, 2017 



